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RILEY SAFER HOLMES & CANCILA LLP

A limited liability partnership formed in the State of Illinois
Sandra L. Musumeci (smusumeci@rshc-law.com)

136 Madison Avenue, 6th Floor

New York, New York 10016

(212) 660-1000

Attorneys for Plaintiff Thermos L.L.C.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

THERMOS L.L.C.,
Plaintiff, Civil Action No. 2:22-cv-6399
V. COMPLAINT FOR PATENT
INFRIGEMENT

HOGG OUTFITTERS, LLC

Defendant. Jury Trial Demanded

Thermos L.L.C. (“Thermos”), by and through its attorneys, and for its Complaint against

Hogg Outfitters, LLC (“Hogg”) alleges as follows:
NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a civil action for patent infringement based upon the patent laws of the
United States, 35 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.

2. Thermos brings this action to stop, and seek compensation for damages caused by,
Hogg’s willful infringement of Thermos’s U.S. Patent Nos. 8,550,269 and D675,060.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

3. Thermos is a Delaware limited liability company with its principal place of business
at 475 N. Martingale Road, Suite 1100, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173.

4. On information and belief, Hogg is a New Jersey limited liability company with its

principal place of business at 100 Northfield Avenue, Edison, New Jersey 08837.
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5. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Thermos’s claims arising under the
United States Patent Act, Title 35, including 35 U.S.C. § 271, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and
1338(a).

6. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Hogg at least because Hogg is organized
and exists under the laws of New Jersey and has its principal place of business in New Jersey.

7. Venue is proper in the District of New Jersey pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b)
because Hogg is organized under the laws of New Jersey and, additionally, because Hogg has a
regular and established place of business in New Jersey where it infringed Thermos’s U.S. Patent
Nos. 8,550,269 and D675,060.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Thermos, Its Products, and the Asserted Products

8. Thermos owns the iconic THERMOS brand, and it develops, markets, and sells
innovative food and beverage containers under that brand and others.

0. For over a century, consumers have relied on THERMOS® products, from the
original vacuum insulated beverage containers that came to market in 1904 to the ubiquitous
FUNtainer® beverage containers used by children throughout the United States today.

10. Thermos is among the top three sellers of vacuum insulated food and beverage
containers in the United States. Its products can be found in virtually all major mass-market
retailers, drug stores, and department stores (including online and physical locations).

11. Thermos is—and is known as—a developer of high-quality, innovative products.
Thermos’s food and beverage containers meet Thermos’s own rigorous quality requirements and
the highest standards for national retailers. Thermos regularly develops new products and
improvements to its existing products, and it has been awarded over 280 United States patents in

the last 20 years alone.
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12. Generations of children have relied on THERMOS beverage containers, including
those within their lunch boxes. More recently, Thermos developed lines of stand-alone beverage
containers for children sold under the Thermos FUNtainer and Thermos Kids brands. One such

Thermos FUNtainer beverage container is shown below:

R
PR

f

o A
d-I+‘F+-r+-r+T+’q. 31’4{

RSesacatctcs )

i

13.  Thermos’s children’s products are well-known and well-liked among the
consuming public, with millions of products sold each year across the United States. FUNtainer
products have been recognized as among the best water bottles for children.

14.  Numerous Thermos products practiced or practice one or more claims of Thermos’s
U.S. Patent Nos. 8,550,269 (“the 269 Patent”) or D675,060 (“the *060 Patent”) (collectively, the
“Asserted Patents”). The 269 Patent and 060 Patent are attached as Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2,
respectively.

15.  Thermos is the assignee of the entire right, title, and interest in the Asserted Patents.
Thermos has the right to sue and recover for past, present, and future infringement of the Asserted

Patents.
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16. The °269 Patent was duly and legally issued on October 8, 2013, and is titled “Drink
Bottle and Lid with Cover for Drink Spout.” Figures 1 and 4 of the *269 Patent are reproduced

below:

17. The ’269 Patent claims, among other things, a drink bottle and lid comprising a
bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure and a removable lid having a cooperating
engaging structure. The removable lid includes an inner lid and an outer lid, where the inner lid
includes the cooperating engaging structure and a first hinge portion. Further, the inner lid defines
a button tunnel and a spout opening, and the button tunnel includes an enclosing structure defining
an enclosed channel to slidably receive a sliding element. The outer lid includes a second hinge
portion for pivoting engagement with the first hinge portion to form a hinge so that the outer lid is
pivotable (relative to the inner lid) between an open position and a closed position. Also, a button
is mounted within the button tunnel so that it is movable between a locked position and an unlocked
position. The button includes a sliding arm slidably mounted within the channel within the
enclosing structure of the inner lid, and the sliding arm is enclosed within the enclosing structure
to prevent contact with the sliding arm by a user. The sliding arm undergoes translational
movement within the enclosed channel during movement of the button between the locked position

and the unlocked position. A locking tab extends from the outer lid and engages the button when
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the outer lid is in the closed position and the button is in the locked position, and disengages from
the button when the button is moved to the unlock position. A drink spout is mounted in the spout
opening of the inner lid and extends from the inner lid at a position to permit a user to drink fluid
contained within the bottle from the drinking tube when the outer lid is in the open position. The
outer lid covers the drink spout when it is in the closed position. Finally, a bail handle is mounted
on the outer lid and pivotable between a stowed position and a deployed position.

18. The ’060 Patent was duly and legally issued on January 29, 2013, and is titled “Lid
for Drink Container.” The 060 Patent claims the ornamental design of a lid for a drink container,

as shown and described from multiple perspectives in Figures 1-6, reproduced below.

Hogg’s Willful Infringement of the Asserted Patents

19. Hogg has infringed claims 1-14 of the 269 Patent and claim 1 of the *060 Patent
by making, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing in the United States the products
referred to, advertised, and sold under the name 12 oz. Sippy Cup, and products that are
substantially similar to the 12 oz. Sippy Cup and sold under a different name (“Hogg’s Sippy

Cup”).
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20. Hogg’s Sippy Cup is a water bottle with a removable lid. The removable lid is
composed of two portions, i.e., an inner and outer lid, joined by a hinge. The inner lid engages
with the water bottle, houses a spout to allow a user to drink the liquid in the bottle, and houses a
button to disengage the outer lid from the inner lid, exposing the spout. Also, a handle is mounted
to the upper lid that can be moved from a stowed position to an extended position.

21. As shown in the claim chart attached as Exhibit 3, Hogg’s Sippy Cup meets each
and every element of representative claim 1 of the *269 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of
equivalents.

22. Further, as shown in Exhibit 4, Hogg’s Sippy Cup is the same or substantially the
same design as claimed in the 060 Patent. An ordinary observer giving such attention as a
purchaser usually gives, would be deceived by the substantial similarity between the designs so as
to believe the design of Hogg’s Sippy Cup is substantially the same as the design protected by the
’060 Patent.

23. On information and belief, in developing Hogg’s Sippy Cup, Hogg or its vendor
copied the Thermos FUNtainer products that practice claims of the Asserted Patents.

24. On information and belief, Hogg intended to exploit Thermos’s innovation and
inventions for its own gain and to Thermos’s detriment.

25. On September 13, 2021, Thermos sent Hogg a cease-and-desist letter notifying
Hogg that it was infringing the Asserted Patents. Hogg was aware that its sales of Hogg’s Sippy
Cup infringed the Asserted Patents no later than the date it received such letter from Thermos.

26. On information and belief, Hogg was aware of the Asserted Patents and Hogg’s
infringement of such patents prior to September 13, 2021, because of the ubiquity of the Thermos

FUNtainer and Thermos Kids products that embody one or more claims of the Asserted Patents,
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that Hogg apparently developed its Sippy Cup by copying the appearance and design of such
Thermos products, and because Thermos marked embodying products with the patent numbers of
the Asserted Patents in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287(a).

27. Despite knowledge of its infringement of the Asserted Patents no later than
September 13, 2021, Hogg continued to sell its Sippy Cup for months thereafter, which constituted
willful infringement.

28. Since at least September 13, 2021, Hogg has indirectly infringed claims 1-14 of
the *269 Patent and claim 1 of the 060 Patent. Hogg has actively and knowingly induced third
parties, such as retailers, distributors, and consumers, to make, use, sell, and/or offer to sell Hogg’s
Sippy Cup. On information and belief, Hogg has sold Hogg’s Sippy Cup to retailers and
distributors with Hogg’s knowledge and intent that such retailers and distributors will resell the
Sippy Cup to consumers.

29. On information and belief, Hogg actively encouraged retailers, distributors, and
consumers to use, sell, and/or offer to sell Hogg’s Sippy Cup by advertising the Sippy Cup on its
website.

30. Hogg has had knowledge of the Asserted Patents and the Sippy Cups’ infringement
of the Asserted Patents since at least September 13, 2021.

31. Hogg has knowingly induced infringement by end users and possessed specific
intent to encourage the end users’ infringement since at least September 13, 2021.

32. Hogg has knowingly contributed to infringement by retailers, distributors, and end
users and knew of this infringing use since at least September 13, 2021.

33. Hogg’s infringement has been knowing, intentional, and willful since at least

September 13, 2021.
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COUNT I
(Infringement of the ’269 Patent)

34, Thermos incorporates by reference, as if fully set forth herein, each of the
allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 33.

35. Hogg has been or is infringing the *269 Patent by making, using, selling, or offering
for sale in the United States, or importing into the United States, including within this judicial
district, Hogg’s Sippy Cup in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

36. Hogg has been or is inducing infringement of the ’269 Patent by actively and
knowingly inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, or import Hogg’s Sippy Cup in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

37. Hogg has been or is contributing to the infringement of the 269 Patent by selling
or offering to sell Hogg’s Sippy Cup, knowing it to be especially made or especially adapted for
practicing an invention of the ’269 Patent and not a staple article or commodity of commerce
suitable for substantial non-infringing use, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(c¢).

38. Hogg’s infringement of the *269 Patent has been, and continues to be knowing,
intentional, and willful.

39. Hogg’s infringement of the ’269 Patent has caused and will continue to cause
Thermos damages for which Thermos is entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. §§ 284 or
289. Hogg’s knowing, intentional, and willful infringement justifies an increase of up to three
times the damages to be assessed pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284.

40. Hogg’s infringement of the ’269 Patent has caused and will continue to cause
Thermos immediate and irreparable harm unless such infringing activities are enjoined by this

Court pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283. Thermos has no adequate remedy at law.
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41. This case is exceptional, and Thermos is entitled to an award of attorney fees
pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285.

COUNT II
(Infringement of the 060 Patent)

42. Thermos incorporates by reference, as if fully set forth herein, each of the
allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 41.

43. Hogg has been or is infringing the 060 Patent by making, using, selling, or offering
for sale in the United States, or importing into the United States, including within this judicial
district, Hogg’s Sippy Cup in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

44. Hogg has been or is inducing infringement of the 060 Patent by actively and
knowingly inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, or import Hogg’s Sippy Cup in
violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

45. Hogg has been or is contributing to the infringement of the 060 Patent by selling
or offering to sell Hogg’s Sippy Cup, knowing it to be especially made or especially adapted for
practicing an invention of the 060 Patent and not a staple article or commodity of commerce
suitable for substantial non-infringing use, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(c¢).

46. Hogg’s infringement of the 060 Patent has been, and continues to be knowing,
intentional, and willful.

47. Hogg’s infringement of the of the ’060 Patent has caused and will continue to cause
Thermos damages for which Thermos is entitled to compensation pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284.
Hogg’s knowing, intentional, and willful infringement justifies an increase of up to three times the

damages to be assessed pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284.
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48. Hogg’s infringement of the 060 Patent has caused and will continue to cause
Thermos immediate and irreparable harm unless such infringing activities are enjoined by this
Court pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283. Thermos has no adequate remedy at law.

49. This case is exceptional, and Thermos is entitled to an award of attorney fees
pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Thermos respectfully requests the following relief:

1. Entry of judgement in Thermos’s favor and against Hogg on all claims for relief
alleged herein,;

2. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining Hogg, its employees, agents, officers,
directors, attorneys, successors, affiliates, subsidiaries, and assigns, and all of those in active
concert and participation with any of the foregoing persons or entities from infringing, contributing
to the infringement of, or inducing infringement of the Asserted Patents;

3. Ordering Hogg to pay damages in an amount to be further proven at trial, for its

infringement of the Asserted Patents;

4. Ordering that the damages award be trebled;

5. Declaring that this is an exceptional case under 35 U.S.C. § 285;

6. Ordering Hogg to pay prejudgment interest, attorneys’ fees, and costs;

7. Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem to be just and proper.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Thermos hereby demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

10



Case 2:22-cv-06399-SRC-JRA Document 1  Filed 11/01/22 Page 11 of 46 PagelD: 11

Dated: November 1, 2022

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/ Sandra L. Musumeci

Sandra L. Musumeci (NJ Bar No. 030972000)
RILEY SAFER HOLMES & CANCILA LLP
136 Madison Avenue, 6th Floor

New York, NY 10016

Telephone: (212) 660-1000

Fax: (212) 660-1001
smusumeci@rshc-law.com

Louis A. Klapp (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)
Edgar Matias (pro hac vice motion forthcoming)
RILEY SAFER HOLMES & CANCILA LLP

70 W. Madison Street, Suite 2900

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Telephone: (312) 471-8700

lIklapp@rshc-law.com

ematias(@ rshc-law.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff Thermos L.L.C.

11
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO LOCAL RULE 11.2
Pursuant to Local Rule 11.2, counsel for Plaintiff hereby certifies, to the best of her
knowledge, that this matter in controversy is not the subject of any other action currently pending
in any court, or of any pending arbitration or administrative proceedings.
I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware that if any of the

foregoing statements are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

RILEY SAFER HOLMES & CANCILA LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiff Thermos, L.L.C.

By: _ /s/Sandra L. Musumeci
Sandra L. Musumeci

Dated: November 1, 2022

12
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Lane 45) Date of Patent: Oct. 8, 2013
(54) DRINK BOTTLE AND LID WITH COVER FOR 4,742,928 A 5/1988 Braun
DRINK SPOUT 5,203,468 A 4/1993 Hsu
5,213,236 A 5/1993 Brown et al.
(75) Inventor: Marvin Lane, Round Lake Beach, I, 5244113 A 9/1993 - Stymiest
(US) (Continued)
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patent is extended or adjusted under 35 (Continued)
U.S.C. 154(b) by O days.
OTHER PUBLICATIONS
(21) Appl. No.: 13/155,512 . .
Thermos catalog of Kids Lunch Kits and Food Storage, 2007, page
(22) Filed: Jun. 8, 2011 showing Thermos FUNtainer bottle and lid, item 24227BA 006 and
four photographs showing the FUNtainer lid.
(65) Prior Publication Data (Continued)
US 2012/0312832 Al Dec. 13, 2012
(51) Int.ClL Primary Examiner — Robert J Hicks
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222/200 a user. The outer lid may be snapped of the inner lid by
IPC .......... B65D 25/28, 41/56, 51/18, 51/00, 5/72, moving the outer lid beyond an open position. A bail handle
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See application file for complete search history. the outer lid or is moved to a deployed position. The bail
handle disconnects from the outer lid when moved beyond the
(56) References Cited deployed position. The push button for releasing the closed
outer lid is enclosed within a tunnel in the inner lid.
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1
DRINK BOTTLE AND LID WITH COVER FOR
DRINK SPOUT

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Field of the Invention

The present invention relates generally to a drink bottle
having a removable lid for a drink bottle, and more particu-
larly to drink bottle in which the removable lid has an inner lid
with a drink spout and an outer lid that selectively covers the
drink spout.

2. Description of the Related Art

Personal beverage bottles are becoming ever more popular
and have moved beyond the common beverage bottle packed
with a school lunch or in a lunch box. Gyms are filled with
members exercising, and many members bring their own
beverage bottles for hydration. Hikers, bikers, walkers, com-
muters, tourists and many others carry beverage bottles as
they go on their way. An increasingly common feature of the
beverage bottles is a drink nozzle or spout that offers the
ability to drink from the bottle without complete removal of
the 1id from the bottle. Another feature of some drink bottles
is a cover for drink spout or nozzle to keep the spout or nozzle
clean between drinking.

An example of a beverage bottle having a removable lid
with a drink spout and a cover selectively securable over the
drink spout is U.S. design Pat. D592,012 S. Another example
is shown in U.S. design Pat. D609.964 S.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

The present invention provides a beverage bottle with a
removable lid wherein the lid has an inner lid with a drink
spout and an outer lid or cover that pivots to selectively cover
the drink spout. The outer lid may be locked to the inner lid
when in the closed positioned. A push button on the inner lid
can be operated to release the locked outer lid, permitting the
outer lid to open so as to permit drinking from the drink spout.
The inner and outer lids are connected to one another by a
hinge that is selectively releasable to permit the outer lid to be
removed from the inner lid. The outer lid can be readily
reattached to the inner lid by reattaching the hinge elements to
one another. The structures of the inner and outer lids are
formed to promote release of the outer lid from the inner lid
when the outer lid is subject to a release force while providing
areinforced mounting of the hinge elements that resist break-
age.

The hinge that connects the inner lid and outer lid may be
configured to block openings in the hinge structure to avoid
pinching of fingers or other things which might otherwise
occur.

The outer lid may include a bail handle by which the bottle
can be carried. The bail handle is movable between a
deployed position at which it extends from the outer lid and a
stored or stowed position at which it fits into a recess in the
outer lid. The bail handle is selectively releasable from the
outer lid when subject to a release force. The structure of the
bail handle and the outer lid is configured to promote release
of'the bail handle without breakage when subject to a release
force. The bail handle is readily reattached to the outer lid.

The push button by which the outer lid is released from the
locked position on the inner lid may be enclosed within a
tunnel in the inner lid to shield elements of the push button
mechanism.
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As aresult, amore durable beverage bottle is provided that
resists breakage by permitting release of reattachable com-
ponents.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG. 1 is a top perspective view showing a drink bottle
according to the principles of the present invention;

FIG. 2 is a side elevational view of the present drink bottle;

FIG. 3 is a front perspective view of the removable lid of
FIGS. 1 and 2 showing an outer lid or cover in a closed
position and a bail handle in a deployed position;

FIG. 4 is a perspective view of the removable lid showing
the outer lid or cover in an open position;

FIG. 5 is an exploded view of the removable lid showing an
inner lid, an outer lid, bail handle, release button and drink
spout;

FIG. 6 is a cross-sectional view of the removable lid along
the section line IV-IV of FIG. 9;

FIG. 7 is a top perspective view showing the outer lid or
cover removed from the inner lid;

FIG. 8 is a front perspective view of the removable lid
showing the bail handle removed from the outer lid;

FIG. 9 is rear elevational view of the removable lid;

FIG. 10 is an enlarged perspective view of the hinge
uprights of the inner lid; and

FIG. 11 is a top rear perspective view of the outer lid or
cover.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED
EMBODIMENTS

Referring first to FIG. 1, a beverage bottle 10 includes a
bottle body 12 to which is attached a removable lid 14. The
bottle body 12 may be of any suitable material, including
metal, plastic, glass, rubber and combinations thereof and
may be insulated or un-insulated. In the illustrated embodi-
ment, the bottle body 12 is formed of an insulated stainless
steel body part 16 on the bottom of which is fastened a plastic
or rubber base 18. The bottle body 12 of a preferred embodi-
ment is of a double-walled construction between which is an
evacuated space, forming a so-called vacuum bottle. The 1lid
of the present invention may be used on a rigid bottle, as
illustrated, or on a flexible bottle. The flexible bottle permits
the user to squeeze the bottle to force the beverage from
bottle, while the rigid bottle requires the user to draw the
liquid out of the bottle through suction or by pouring the
liquid from the bottle.

The removable lid 14 is secured to the mouth of the bottle
12 by a threaded connection in the illustrated embodiment, as
will be apparent in FIG. 6. Threads are formed about the
mouth of the bottle 12 and cooperating threads are formed
within the lid 14 to that the lid 14 may be threadably attached
to and detached from the bottle 12. The bottle 12 may be a
narrow-mouth bottle or a wide-mouth bottle, a wide-mouth
bottle is shown. Other fastening means to attach the lid 14 to
the bottle 12 may be provided instead, such as a snap-on lid
that fits onto a rim on the bottle, a bayonet attachment, or
other lid attachment structure.

The removable lid 14 has an inner lid 20, a push button 22,
an outer lid or cover 24 and a hinge 26 that connects the inner
lid 20 to the outer lid 24. A bail handle 28 is provided on the
outer lid 24. A thumb notch 30 is provided on the outer 1id 24
to enable the user to engage the bail handle 28 so as to move
the bail 28 from a stowed condition, as shown, to a deployed
condition. A depression 32 is formed on the top of the outer lid
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24 on which the user may press to cause the outer lid 24 to
engage the inner lid 20 in a locked condition.

In FIG. 2, the bottle 10 has the base 18 that provides
protection for the bottom of the bottle as well as providing a
relatively wide surface on which the bottle is rested when
standing. The base is of a plastic material, such as polypro-
pylene, although other materials are of course possible. The
bottle body 16 has a smooth surface which may be provided
with patterns, such as by printing, painting, embossing or
otherwise. The inner lid 20 in the illustrated embodiment
includes a decorative embossing 34. Other patterns or shapes
may be provided on the inner lid 20 instead. The inner 1id 20
has a raised rim 36 surrounding the button 22 that projects
slightly from the front of the lid 14. The upper lid 24 includes
a cut-out that accommodates the raised rim 36. The upper lid
24 also has a sloping, domed top surface 38, along the edge of
which is the stowed bail handle 28. The ends 40 of the bail
handle 28 are semi-circular and fit into semi-circular recesses
in the outer lid 24. At the hinge 26 is seen an opening 42
within which is seen a hinge pin. The lower edge 44 of the
outer 1id 24 extends in a flat plane generally transverse to the
axis of the bottle 10. The inner lid 20 includes a correspond-
ingly shaped upper edge except that a bevel 46 is provided in
the inner lid 20 adjacent the hinge 26.

Turning to FIG. 3, a user has moved the bail handle 28 to
the deployed position so that it extends from the outer lid 24
and forms a carrying handle. The bottle 10 may be carried by
the bail handle 28 or hung by the bail handle 28, such as on a
hook for a store display. The inner surface of the bail handle
28 includes two retainer projections 48 that extend inwardly.
A recess channel 50 is formed on the outer lid 24 for receiving
the bail handle 28 when in the stored position, as shown in
FIG. 1. Within the recess channel 50 is provided two retainer
indentations 52 into which the projections 48 fit when the bail
handle 28 is in the stored position. The bail handle 28 snaps
into the stowed position in the recess channel 50 and is held in
place by the retainer projections 48 and retainer indentations
52 until a user inserts a finger into the thumb notch 30 and
forces the bail handle 29 out of the snap engagement stowed
position. Other numbers or arrangements of projections,
indentations or other structures for retaining the bail handle in
position are contemplated as well.

The bail handle 28 includes the semi-circular ends 40 that
rotate in the semi-circular recesses 54 at the ends of the recess
channel 50 in the outer lid 24 when the bail handle 28 is
moved between the stowed and deployed positions.

FIG. 4 shows the outer lid or cover 24 in the open position,
revealing a drink spout 56. The outer 1id 24 is movable to the
open position after a user releases the locking mechanism by
pressing the release button 22. The locking mechanism
includes a tab 58 on the outer lid 24 that has an opening 60
extending through the tab 58. The tab 58 is at the cut-out in the
outer lid 24 that accommodates the projecting rim 36 when
the outer lid 24 is closed. As the outer lid 24 is pivoted to the
closed position, the tab 58 fits into a slot 62 on the inner 1id 20.
Within the slot 62 is a catch mechanism that engages the
opening 60 in the tab 58 to hold the outer lid 24 in the closed
position on the inner lid 20. The slot 62 is formed in a tunnel
structure 64 formed on the inner lid 20. The tunnel 64
encloses the working parts of the locking mechanism that is
operated by the button 22 to protect it from damage and to
keep unwanted matter out. For example, spilled beverages are
kept from the locking mechanism by the tunnel 64. The raised
rim 36 that extends from the outer lid 24 around the button 22
when the outer lid 24 is closed is at the end of the tunnel 64.
An end of a pin 66 that holds the locking mechanism in the

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

4

tunnel 64 is visible at the surface of the tunnel 64. The pin 66
extends into and through the tunnel 64.

The drink spout 56 is shown extending upwardly at a con-
venient angle for drinking from the drink bottle. The drink
spout 56 is connected in fluid communication to a straw 68
that extends from the underside of the inner lid 20 and into the
drink bottle 12. The user may drink from the bottle while
keeping the bottle upright by sipping from the spout 56. The
straw 68 preferably extends to the bottom of the bottle 16 and
may extend coaxially within the bottle or extend at an angle to
a lower corner of the bottle, for example.

The spout 56 is formed ofa pliable material, such as silicon
rubber that flexes and bends readily. When the outer lid 24 is
moved to the closed position, a bending flange 70 extending
from the inner surface of the outer lid presses on the spout 56
and bends it down from the upwardly angled position shown
in FIG. 4. The downwardly flexed spout 56 presses against a
counter ridge 72 on the inner lid 20. The counter ridge 72 is on
the tunnel 64 in the illustrated embodiment. The combined
effects of the bending flange 70 and the counter ridge 72 is to
pinch the spout 56 so as to close the spout and prevent leakage
of fluid from the drink bottle 10.

The spout 56 extends from a spout base or pedestal 74 that
is mounted in an opening in the inner 1id 20. The spout base 74
is shaped in an extended shape in a direction perpendicular to
the axis of the fluid passageway so the spout 56 is prevented
from being rotated in the inner lid 20. The drink spout 56 is
assured of facing toward the button 22. A notch 76 is formed
on each side of the spout base 74. The notches 74 permit the
spout base 74 to deform for mounting in the opening of the
inner lid 20.

The inner lid 20 has a dome shaped upper surface 78. The
spout base 74 is mounted on the dome 78, thereby positioning
the spout 56 higher on the bottle 10 for more convenient
drinking. The dome 78 receives the tunnel structure 64 in
which the release button 22 is mounted, thereby strengthen-
ing the tunnel 64. The dome 78 also strengthens the hinge
structure, as will be described hereinafter.

The bail handle 28 is connected to the outer lid 24 by pins
80 that extend from the bail handle 28 through openings in the
outer 1id 24 at the recess 54. The openings in the outer lid 24
that receive the pins 80 include slots 82.

The bending flange 70 on the inside of the outer lid 24 has
projections 84 on either side to keep the drink spout 56 cen-
tered on the flange 70 when closing the outer lid 24. The
bending flange 70 is supported by a gusset 86. In the view of
FIG. 4 can be seen an edge of a projection 88 on the inside of
the outer lid 24. The bending flange 70 and gusset 86 are
mounted on the projection 88. The projection 88 is the inside
surface of the depression 32 on the outside of the outer lid 24.
By this arrangement, pressure exerted by the user at the fin-
ger-shaped depression 32 is transmitted directly through the
bending flange 70 and gusset 86 to flex the drink spout 56 and
bring the outer lid 24 to the closed and locked position on the
inner lid 20.

In FIG. 5, the removable lid 14 is shown in exploded view.
From the top, the bail handle 28 has the pins 80 extending
from the semi-circular ends 40. Next, the outer lid 24 has the
finger depression 32 on the dome-shaped top. The recess
channel 50 extends to the semi-circular recesses 54 that
include holes 90 into which the pins 80 fit. The slots 82 extend
from the holes 90 to permit the material surrounding the holes
to flex so that the pins 80 can be inserted into and pulled from
the holes 90. The tab 58 with the opening 60 extends from the
outer lid 24 at the cut-out 92 that fits over the tunnel structure
64. The indentations 52 in the bail recess channel 50 by which
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the bail 28 is secured in the stowed position and the notch 30
by which the bail 28 is urged from its stowed position are also
seen.

In the inner lid 20 is formed the tunnel 64 within which is
mounted the button 22. The button 22 has a catch nose 94 that
engages into the opening 60 in the tab 58 of the outer lid 24
when the tab 58 is inserted through the slot 62 in the tunnel 64.
The release button 22 is biased to a position engaging the tab
58 by a spring 96 that is mounted within the tunnel 64
between structures within the inner lid 20 and the button 22.
The spring 96 may be formed or any of several different
materials and may be formed as a coil spring or otherwise. In
the illustrated embodiment, the spring 96 is a tube of com-
pressible rubber, such as silicone rubber, that compresses
when the button 22 is pressed and that returns the button 22 to
a locking position when the button 22 is released. Pressing on
the button 22 to compress the spring 96 moves the catch nose
94 in the button 22 out of engagement with the opening 60 in
the tab 58 of the outer lid 24, permitting the outer lid 24 to
open.

The release button 22 is held in the tunnel 64 by the pin 66
that passes through an opening 98 in the button 22 and
through openings 100 in the tunnel 64 of the inner lid 20.
Sliding arms 102 are provided on the release button 22 to
facilitate sliding movement of the button 22 within the tunnel
structure of the inner lid 20.

The inner 1id 20 has an elongated opening 104 in which is
mounted the drink spout 56. Two hinge uprights 106 are on
the rear of the inner lid 20 to which cooperating hinge parts on
the outer lid 24 are mounted.

The drink spout 56 is formed of a pliable, food safe mate-
rial, such as silicone rubber so that it may be bent and flexed
to a variety of shapes. The drink spout 56 extends from the
spout base or pedestal 74 which is shaped to fit snuggly in the
elongated opening 104 of the inner lid 20. The notches 76
provide a flexing location by which the pedestal is flexed
during insertion into the inner lid 20. The pedestal 74 extends
from a gasket disk 108 that is mounted within the inner 1id 20
and which forms a fluid-tight seal against the mouth of the
bottle 16 when the removable 1id 14 is fastened into place. The
gasket disk 108 is of a size to accommodate the mouth of the
bottle 16, a gasket disk 108 for a wide mouth bottle is shown.
It is also foreseen that the gasket may be separate from the
drink spout 56 as well. The spout base or pedestal 74 includes
a vent hole 110 by which air enters the bottle 16 during
drinking of fluid from the drink spout 56 by a user. The straw
68, shown in FIG. 4, is fastened into the spout base or pedestal
74 so as to extend into the interior of the bottle 16.

The spout pedestal 74 is insertable into the opening 104 in
the inner lid 20 during assembly of the present removable lid
14. The snug fit of the pedestal 74 in the opening 104, and
possibly the addition of a flange extending from the pedestal
74 above the top of the opening, holds the drink spout 56 in
position in the inner lid 20. The notches 76 on the sides of the
pedestal 74 permit flexing of the pedestal 74 as it is inserted.
The drink spout 56 can be removed from the inner lid 20 by
forcing the pedestal 74 out of the inner lid 20. The compress-
ible pedestal 74, in part due to the notches 76, facilitates
removal of the drink spout 56. This permits the spout 56 to be
cleaned and possibly to be replaced if needed. The drink spout
56 is reattached to the inner 1id 20 by inserting the pedestal 74
into the opening 104 and forcing it into position. The straw 68
is also selectively removable for cleaning or replacement as
needed.

The bail handle 28, outer lid 24, and inner lid 20 are of
polypropylene in one embodiment. The release button 22
may be of polypropylene or another material. As noted above,
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the drink spout 56 and spring 96 are of silicone rubber. Other
materials are of course possible and are encompassed within
the scope of the present invention.

FIG. 6 provides an interior view of the removable lid 14.
The bail handle 28 is shown in the stowed position in the
recess channel 50. The outer lid 24 has the tab 58 inserted
through the slot 62 so that the catch nose 94 engages the
opening 60. This locks the outer 1id 24 into the closed position
on the inner lid 20. The spring 96 that is compressed when the
release button 22 is pressed is visible in its installed position.
The pin 66 that extends through the opening 98 in the button
22. The button 22 is constructed to permit translation or
sliding movement within the inner lid 20 to move been the
locked and unlocked positions.

The drink spout 56 is in the crimped position as a result of
being pressed by the bending flange 70 and against the
counter ridge 72. This crimping closes the fluid flow passage-
way within the drink spout 56 to guard against leakage of
beverages contained within the bottle 10. The resilient nature
of the drink spout 56 and the material of which it is formed
biases the outer lid 24 toward the open position as a result of
the bending flange 70 pressing on the spout material. As a
result, the outer lid 24 pops open when the release button 22
is pressed.

The vent hole 110 in the pedestal or spout base 74 is closed
by a vent pin 112 that extends from the interior of the outer lid
24. Closing of the vent hole 110 helps prevent leaking of the
liquid from the drink bottle, for example when the bottle is
stored on its side such as when stuffed into a school locker or
gym bag. When the outer lid 24 is opened, the vent pin 112
moves clear of the vent hole 110, permitting air into the
interior of the bottle 10 when a user drinks from the spout 56.
Venting of the bottle during drinking is necessary for rigid
bottles due to the low pressure that could otherwise develop as
liquid is drawn from the bottle. If the present lid is to be used
on a flexible squeeze bottle in which the user squeezes the
bottleto force the beverage from the drink spout, the vent hole
and the vent closing pin are not necessary and need not be
included. If the lid will be used exclusively on a squeeze
bottle, the vent hole should be avoided to prevent exit of the
liquid via the vent hole during squeezing.

The hinge parts of the outer lid 24 include a center cover
114 that curves to cover a space between the hinge uprights
106 of the inner lid 20. The center cover includes a cam
surface 116 that engages a cam ridge 118 on the inner lid 20
when the outer lid 24 is pivoted to the fully open position. The
engagement of the cam surface 116 and cam ridge 118 retains
the outer lid 24 in the open position to keep the lid out of the
way when a user is drinking from the spout 56. Only a little
force is required to move the cam surface 116 out of retaining
engagement with the cam ridge 118 so that the outer 1id 24 can
be pivoted from the fully open position, such as to move the
lid to the closed position.

The gasket disk 108 is positioned on the top interior surface
of the inner lid 20 to provide a fluid tight enclosure for any
beverages within the bottle 10. The spout base or pedestal 74
defines a passageway for the vent 110 into the interior of the
bottle 10 as well as a fluid passageway through the spout 56 to
a straw mounting bore 120 into which the straw 68 (not
shown) is mounted. An alternative to the straw mounting bore
120 within the pedestal 74 is to provide a sleeve that extends
below the pedestal 74 into the interior of the bottle as a
continuation of the fluid passageway within the drink spout
56. The sleeve receives the end of a straw that reaches to the
bottom of the interior of the bottle. The preferred sleeve is a
pliable sleeve of the same material as the gasket and spout that
holds the straw in a fluid-tight engagement. The interior of the
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inner lid 20 is threaded at 122 so that it can be threaded on to
threads on the bottle 16. Notches 124 are provided in the
lower edge of the inner lid 20 for removal of the 1id 20 from
the mold in which the lid is formed.

FIG. 7 shows the outer 1id 24 removed from the inner1id 20.
The outer lid 24 has been pivoted to the open position. With
the outer lid 24 in the fully open position, in which the outer
lid 24 is generally inverted relative to the closed position of
the outer 1id 24, the cam surface 116 and a cam ridge 118
cooperate to hold the outer lid 24 open. Further pivoting force
on the outer lid 24 results in the hinge elements disengaging
from one another to that the outer lid 24 is free of the inner lid
20, as shown in FIG. 7. This movement may be referred to as
pivoting the outer lid beyond the fully opened position to a
release position. The disengagement of the lids 20 and 24
from one another occurs without breaking or otherwise dam-
aging or misshaping the parts. It is also possible that the outer
lid 24 may become disengaged from the inner lid 20 other
than by being pivoted beyond the fully opened position, for
example, if the bottle is inadvertently dropped or otherwise
subject to a force.

The outer lid 24 is easily reattached to the inner lid 20 by
positioning the lids generally as shown in FIG. 7, then posi-
tioning the hinge parts of the outer lid 24 onto the top of the
hinge parts of the inner lid 20 and pressing the hinge parts
together. The hinge parts reassemble with a snap and the lids
20 and 24 are once again pivotally joined.

The hinge 26 is formed by the hinge uprights 106 on the
inner lid 20 that are spaced from one another to define a center
gap 126. The outward facing surfaces of the hinge uprights
106 are provided with hinge pins 128. The outer lid 24 has a
pair of hinge bearings 130 that are spaced from one another by
a distance to span the outside of the hinge uprights 106. The
opening 42 is provided through each of the hinge bearings
130 into which the pins 128 fit when the hinge parts are
connected to one another. The center cover 114 extends
between the hinge bearings 130.

The bending flange 70 with the projections 84 and the
support gusset 86 mounted on the projection 88 is seen within
the outer lid 24 as is the vent pin 112.

In FIG. 8, the bail handle 28 has been pivoted to the
deployed position as shown for example in FIG. 3 and then a
further pivoting force exerted on the bail handle 28. As a result
of'the further pivoting force, the bail handle 28 pops loose of
the outer lid 24 without damage to either the bail 28 or the lid
24. Reattachment of the bail handle 28 to the outer lid 24 is
accomplished by positioning the pins 80 over the holes 90 in
the outer lid 24 and pressing inward to snap the pins 80 back
into place.

Thebail handle 28 and outer lid 24 are configured to release
the bail from the lid when pressed beyond the fully deployed
position. In particular, the semi-circular recess 54 in the outer
lid 24 has a back edge 132 that slopes downward and outward
relative to the pivot axis of the bail handle 28. The outward
sloping back edge 132 is a continuation of the dome-shaped
top 38 of the outer lid. When the bail handle 28 is in the fully
deployed position, the handle bears against the back edge
132. Further pressure on the bail handle 28 in the pivot direc-
tion results in an outward force on the pivot pins 80 pulling in
opposite directions as a top surface of the bail handle 28 slides
on the outwardly angled back edges 132. This force pulls the
pins 80 outward from the holes 90 rather than shearing the
pins off. The bail 28 is disassembled from the lid without
breakage and can readily be reattached.

In FIG. 9, the rear of the lid 14 in the closed position
includes the uprights 106 on the inner lid 20 that define the
center gap 126 therebetween. The center cover 114 fits
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between the uprights 106 to fill the center gap 126. The center
cover 114 carries the cam 116 that engages the cam ridge 118
on the inner lid 20 which holds the outer lid 24 in position
when in the open position. The center cover 114 also covers
the center gap 126 to prevent fingers or other things from
being inserted into the center gap 126 when the lid 24 is
closed and thereby getting pinched when the lid 24 is being
opened.

The hinge bearings 130 are disposed on opposite sides of
the uprights 106 engage the hinge pins 128 to permit pivoting
movement of the lids relative to one another. The bevel 46 on
the inner lid 20 at the hinge includes three beveled surfaces
134 separated by the uprights 106. The beveled surfaces 134
are positioned so that movement of the outer lid 24 beyond the
fully open position causes the outer lid 24 to contact the
beveled surfaces 128, which exerts a disconnecting force on
the hinge. In particular, pushing the outer lid 24 past its fully
open position causes a lifting motion on the bearings 130
relative to the uprights 106 so that the bearings 130 are pulled
off of the hinge pins 128.

The downward and outwardly sloping back edges 132 of
the bail recess channel 50 which cause the bail pivot pins of
the bail handle 28 to be pulled outwardly in opposite direc-
tions so that they disengage from the holes 90 in the outer lid
24 are apparent in the view of FIG. 9. When the bail handle 28
is pressed with sufficient force, which may also be termed a
disengaging force, against the outwardly sloping back edges
132, the bail ends slide outwardly along the back edges 132,
resulting in the bail pins 80 being drawn out of the holes. The
bail pins 80 each include a widened cap at the free end to hold
the pins in the holes 90 and thereby prevent the bail 28 from
being disengaged too easily.

An objective is to permit the parts to disengage from one
another when subject to a force that might otherwise break the
parts, but not to have the parts come apart so easily that the
user is constantly faced with reassembling the beverage
bottle. A typical user might be able to use the bottle without
the parts every becoming disassembled. However, if the bev-
erage bottle is dropped of subject to more than a normal use
force, the parts simply pop off without breakage.

Turning to FIG. 10, the hinge uprights 106 on the inner lid
20 include the hinge pins 128 extending outwardly from the
uprights 106. The hinge pins 128 are encircled by a recess
136. The recess 136 may provide flexibility to the hinge pins
128 to permit flexing without breakage. The hinge pins 128
include rounded edges and include an angled end surface 138.
The angled end 138 results in the pin 128 having a shorter
bearing surface in a direction facing away from the inner lid
20 and a longer bearing surface in a direction facing toward
the inner lid 20. The effect is to require less force for the outer
lid 24 to be re-attached to the inner lid 20 than the amount of
force for the outer 1id 24 to be disconnected from the inner lid
20. As such, even though the outer lid 24 is removable by
pressing beyond the fully open position, re-attachment of the
outer lid 24 should be easily accomplished by the user to
return the removable 1id to its fully operating condition.

Other shapes of hinge pins are encompassed within the
invention, including hinge pins that include an end surface
transverse to the shaft of the pin. It is foreseen to provide the
hinge pins with flats on one or more sides that narrow the pins
in a removal and reattachment direction. An example of flats
107 on the hinge pins is shown in FIG. 5. The flats 107 are on
opposite sides of each hinge pin and the flats 107 are oriented
to facilitate removal and reattachment of the outer lid in one
direction but to resist removal of the outer lid in other direc-
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tions. The hinge pins more easily slide along release channels
in the hinge bearings in the preferred removal and reattach-
ment direction.

The uprights 106 have a base connected to the inner lid 20
that extends not only in a direction perpendicular to the top
surface of the inner lid 20 but also has an extended base
portion 140 connected to the dome shaped upper surface 78.
The extended base portion 140 provides a broader base for the
uprights so that the uprights are reinforced by the dome 78.
Additional resistance to breakage is provided to that the lid
becomes disassembled without breakage. The beveled sur-
face portions 134 are seen as well as the cam ridge 118.

Turning to FIG. 11, the outer lid 24 is seen from the top.
The dome shaped top surface 38 that includes the depression
32, the bail recess 50 and the hinge bearings 130 is seen. The
hinge bearings 130 include channels 142 that lead from the
top surface of the 1id 24 to the opening 42 into which the hinge
pins 128 fit. The channels 142 provide a pathway for the hinge
pins 128 to pass through when the outer lid 24 is removed
from the inner lid 20 by pressing the outer lid 24 against the
beveled surface portions 134 of the inner 1id 20. As important
is that the channels 142 provide a pathway for the hinge pins
128 to follow when the outer lid 24 is reassembled on the
inner 1id 20. As noted above, the outer lid 24 is positioned in
an inverted position relative to the inner lid 20, the hinge
elements are positioned together, and then a pressing force is
applied to cause the hinge pins 128 to slide along the channels
142 and into place in the openings 42.

Thus, there has been shown and described a drink bottle
having a removable lid that has a drinking spout and a lock-
able cover or outer lid over the drinking spout. The cover or
outer lid and bail handle can become disassembled from the
drink bottle without breakage. Both the cover or outer lid and
the bail handle are easily reassembled on the drink bottle. The
locking mechanism is enclosed within a tunnel structure to
cover the moving parts. A raised dome structure on the inner
lid extends to the tunnel structure as well as provides a bev-
eled base for the hinge elements that connect the inner and
outer lids.

Although other modifications and changes may be sug-
gested by those skilled in the art, it is the intention of the
inventor to embody within the patent warranted hereon all
changes and modifications as reasonably and properly come
within the scope of his contribution to the art.

I claim:

1. A drink bottle and lid, comprising:

a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure;

a removable 1id having a cooperating engaging structure
for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure
of said bottle;

said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid,
said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc-
ture, said inner lid defining a button tunnel and a spout
opening, said button tunnel including an enclosing struc-
ture defining an enclosed channel to slidably receive a
sliding element, said inner lid including a first hinge
portion;

said outer lid including a second hinge portion for pivoting
engagement with said first hinge portion to form a hinge
so that said outer lid is pivotable relative to said inner lid
between an open position and a closed position;

a button mounted within said button tunnel of said inner lid
so as to be movable between a lock position and an
unlock position, said button including a sliding arm slid-
ably mounted within said channel within said enclosing
structure of said inner lid, said sliding arm being
enclosed within said enclosing structure to prevent con-
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tact with said sliding arm by a user, said sliding arm
undergoing translational movement within said

enclosed channel during movement of said button
between said lock position and said unlock position;

alocking tab extending from said outer lid, said locking tab
engaging said button when said outer lid is in said closed
position and said button is in said lock position, said
locking tab being disengaged from said button when
said button is moved to said unlock position;

a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner
lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a
position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within
the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in
the open position, said outer lid covering said drink
spout when said outer lid is in said closed position; and

a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable
between a stowed position and a deployed position.

2. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 1, wherein said
sliding arm of said button is a first sliding arm and further
comprising a second sliding arm of said button, said first and
second sliding arms being slidably received within corre-
sponding enclosed sliding channels within said enclosing
structure, said inner lid defines an opening in said enclosing
structure of said button tunnel, and said outer lid includes a
tab that extends through said opening in said enclosing struc-
ture and into engagement with said portion of said button
disposed between said first and second sliding arms and
within said enclosing structure when said outer lid is in said
locked position.

3. A drink bottle and lid, comprising:

a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure;

a removable lid having a cooperating engaging structure
for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure
of said bottle;

said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid,
said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc-
ture, said inner lid defining a button tunnel and a spout
opening, said inner lid including a first hinge portion;

said outer lid including a second hinge portion for pivoting
engagement with said first hinge portion so that said
outer lid is pivotable relative to said inner lid between an
open position and a closed position;

a button mounted within said button tunnel of said inner lid
so as to be movable between a lock position and an
unlock position;

alocking tab extending from said outer lid, said locking tab
engaging said button when said outer lid is in said closed
position and said button is in said lock position, said
locking tab being disengaged from said button when
said button is moved to said unlock position;

a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner
lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a
position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within
the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in
the open position, said outer lid covering said drink
spout when said outer lid is in said closed position; and

a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable
between a stowed position and a deployed position;

wherein said first and second hinge portions include hinge
pins and hinge bearings, said hinge bearings including
channels through which said hinge pins move when said
when the outer lid is moved beyond a fully open position
so as to release said first and second hinge portions from
one another.

4. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 3, wherein said

hinge pins are of a generally cylindrical shape and each have
an angled end surface.

Page 31 of 46 PagelD: 31



Case 2:22-cv-06399-SRC-JRA Document 1

Filed 11/01/22

US 8,550,269 B2

11

5. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 4, wherein said
hinge pins are encircled by a recess channel in one of said first
and second hinge portions having said hinge pins.

6. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 1, wherein said
outer lid includes a recess channel, and wherein said bail
handle fits into said recess channel in said outer lid when in a
stowed position and extends from said recess channel when in
an extended position.

7. A drink bottle and lid, comprising:

12

alocking tab extending from said outer lid, said locking tab
engaging said button when said outer lid is in said closed
position and said button is in said lock position, said
locking tab being disengaged from said button when
said button is moved to said unlock position;

a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner
lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a
position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within
the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in

a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure; 10 the open position, said outer lid covering said drink
a removable 1id having a cooperating engaging structure spout when said outer lid is in said closed position; and
for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable
of'said bottle; between a stowed position and a deployed position;
said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid, |, wherein said hinge includes two spaced hinge bearings on
said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc- said outer lid for engaging two hinge mounts on said
ture, said inner lid defining a button tunnel and a spout inner lid, and further comprising a curved cover between
opening, said inner lid including a first hinge portion; said hinge bearings, said curved cover blocking access
said outer lid including a second hinge portion for pivoting to a space between said two hinge mounts by a user’s
engagement with said first hinge portion so that said 20 finger.
outer lid is pivotable relative to said inner lid between an 9. A drink bottle and lid, comprising:
open position and a closed position; a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure;

a button mounted within said button tunnel of said inner lid a removable lid having a cooperating engaging structure
so as to be movable between a lock position and an for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure
unlock position; 25 of said bottle;

alocking tab extending from said outer lid, said locking tab said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid,
engaging said button when said outer lid is in said closed said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc-
position and said button is in said lock position, said ture for engagement with said bottle, said inner lid and
locking tab being disengaged from said button when said outer lid being selectively securable to one another
said button is moved to said unlock position; 30 in a closed position, said inner lid defining a spout open-

a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner ing;

lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner
position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a
the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within
the open position, said outer lid covering said drink 35 the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in
spout when said outer lid is in said closed position; and an open position, said outer lid covering said drink spout

a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable when said outer 1id is in said closed position;
between a stowed position and a deployed position; said inner lid including a first hinge portion, said outer lid

wherein said outer lid includes a recess channel, and including a second hinge portion for pivoting engage-
wherein said bail handle fits into said recess channel in 40 ment with said first hinge portion so that said outer lid is
said outer lid when in a stowed position and extends pivotable relative to said inner lid between said open
from said recess channel when in an extended position; position and said closed position, said outer lid being

wherein said bail handle is mounted in said outer lid by securable in said open position, said outer lid being
pivot pins, said outer lid having outwardly sloping sur- movable beyond said open position to cause release of
faces against which said bail handle bears when said bail 45 said first and second hinge portions from one another;
handle is moved beyond a fully deployed position, said and
outwardly sloping surfaces causing said pivot pins to one of said first and second hinge portions including hinge
disengage from said outer lid when said bail handle is pins and the other of said first and second hinge portions
pressed against said outwardly sloping surfaces with a defining openings into which said hinge pins are dis-
disengaging force so that said bail handle disengages 50 posed for pivoting movement, said other of said first and
from said outer lid. second hinge portions define channels extending from

8. A drink bottle and lid, comprising: said openings through which said hinge pins move dur-

a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure; ing the release of the first and second hinge portions as

a removable 1id having a cooperating engaging structure said outer lid is moved beyond said open position.
for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure 55  10. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 9, wherein
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of said bottle;

said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid,
said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc-
ture, said inner lid defining a button tunnel and a spout
opening, said inner lid including a first hinge portion; 60

said outer lid including a second hinge portion for pivoting
engagement with said first hinge portion to form a hinge
so that said outer lid is pivotable relative to said inner lid
between an open position and a closed position;

a button mounted within said button tunnel of said inner lid 65
so as to be movable between a lock position and an
unlock position;

said inner lid includes a beveled surface adjacent said first
hinge portion, said outer lid bearing against said beveled
surface when said outer lid is moved beyond said open posi-
tion so as to cause said first and second hinge portions to
disengage from one another.
11. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 9, further
comprising:
a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable
between a stowed position and a deployed position;
pins extending between said bail handle and said outer lid
on which said bail handle pivots between said stowed
position and said deployed position;
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a disengagement surface on said outer lid against which
said bail handle bears when moved beyond said
deployed position, said disengagement surface causing
said pins to disengage from between said bail handle and
said outer lid when a disengaging force is exerted on said
bail handle.

12. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 11, further
comprising: a retainer projection that engages a retainer
indentation as between said outer lid and said bail handle
when said bail handle is in a stowed position to retain said bail
handle in said stowed position, said retainer projection being
disengaged from said retainer indentation when said bail
handle is in said deployed position.

13. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 9, wherein
said hinge pins each have an end surface disposed at an angle
to an axis of said pins.

14. A drink bottle and lid, comprising:

a bottle having a mouth with a lid engaging structure;

a removable 1id having a cooperating engaging structure
for selective engagement with the lid engaging structure
of said bottle;

said removable lid including an inner lid and an outer lid,
said inner lid including said cooperating engaging struc-
ture for engagement with said bottle, said inner lid and
said outer lid being selectively securable to one another
in a closed position, said inner lid defining a spout open-
ng;

a drink spout mounted in said spout opening of said inner
lid, said drink spout extending from said inner lid at a
position to permit a user to drink fluid contained within
the bottle from the drinking tube when said outer lid is in

20

25

30

14

an open position, said outer lid covering said drink spout
when said outer 1id is in said closed position;

said inner lid including a first hinge portion, said outer lid
including a second hinge portion for pivoting engage-
ment with said first hinge portion so that said outer lid is
pivotable relative to said inner lid between said open
position and said closed position; and

a bail handle mounted on said outer lid and pivotable
between a stowed position and a deployed position;

pins extending between said bail handle and said outer lid
on which said bail handle pivots between said stowed
position and said deployed position; and

a disengagement surface on said outer lid against which
said bail handle bears when moved beyond said
deployed position, said disengagement surface causing
said pins to disengage from between said bail handle and
said outer lid when a disengaging force is exerted on said
bail handle.

15. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 14, wherein
said inner and outer lids are selectively detachable from one
another by moving said outer lid beyond a fully open position
and are selectively reattachable by snapping hinge parts
together.

16. A drink bottle and lid as claimed in claim 14, further
comprising:

a push button on said inner lid that is operable to release
said outer lid from a closed position over the drink spout;
and

a tunnel structure on said inner lid within which said push
button is mounted.

#* #* #* #* #*
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1. A drink bottle and lid,
comprising:

a bottle having a mouth with a
lid engaging structure;

Lid engaging structure

Hogg’s Sippy Cup

Exhibit 3 — 1
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Hogg’s Sippy Cup

a removable lid having a
cooperating engaging structure
for selective engagement with
the lid engaging structure of
said bottle;

Removable lid

said removable lid including an
inner lid and an outer lid, said
inner lid including said
cooperating engaging structure,
said inner lid defining a button
tunnel and a spout opening,
said button tunnel including an
enclosing structure defining an
enclosed channel to slidably
receive a sliding element, said
inner lid including a first hinge
portion;

First hinge
portion

Cooperative
engaging structure

Inner lid

Button tunnel

Spout opening

Enclosing Structure

Exhibit 3 — 2
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Hogg’s Sippy Cup

said outer lid including a second | First
hinge portion for pivoting hinge
engagement with said first portion

hinge portion to form a hinge so
that said outer lid is pivotable
relative to said inner lid
between an open position and a
closed position;

Open position

Closed position

Second
hinge
portion

a button mounted within said
button tunnel of said inner lid
so as to be movable between a
lock position and an unlock
position, said button including a
sliding arm slidably mounted
within said channel within said
enclosing structure of said inner
lid, said sliding arm being
enclosed within said enclosing
structure to prevent contact
with said sliding arm by a user,
said sliding arm undergoing
translational movement within
said enclosed channel during
movement of said button

Enclosing
structure

Sliding arm

Button

between said lock position and
said unlock position;

Locked position

Unlocked position

Exhibit 3 -3
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a locking tab extending from
said outer lid, said locking tab
engaging said button when said
outer lid is in said closed
position and said button is in Locking tab
said lock position, said locking
tab being disengaged from said
button when said button is
moved to said unlock position;

a drink spout mourl_tefl in sa%d Open position Closed position
spout opening of said inner lid,

said drink spout extending from
said inner lid at a position to Drinking
permit a user to drink fluid spout
contained within the bottle from
the drinking tube when said
outer lid is in the open position,
said outer lid covering said
drink spout when said outer lid
is in said closed position; and

Deployed position

a bail handle mounted on said

outer lid and pivotable between Handle
a stowed position and a
deployed position
Outer
Lid

Exhibit 3 — 4




Case 2:22-cv-06399-SRC-JRA Document 1  Filed 11/01/22 Page 44 of 46 PagelD: 44

Exhibit 4



Case 2:22-cv-06399-SRC-JRA  Document1 Filed 11/01/22 Page 45 of 46 PagelD: 45

U.S. Patent No. D675,060 Hogg’s Sippy Cup

=
= s — =

. e s

Exhibit 4 — 1



Case 2:22-cv-06399-SRC-JRA  Document1 Filed 11/01/22 Page 46 of 46 PagelD: 46

U.S. Patent No. D675,060 Hogg’s Sippy Cup

Exhibit 4 — 2



	FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
	Thermos, Its Products, and the Asserted Products
	Hogg’s Willful Infringement of the Asserted Patents


